#### **GAS TARIFF**

#### CENTRAL TEXAS SERVICE AREA

Incorporated Areas of Austin, Cedar Park, Kyle, Rollingwood, Sunset Valley and West Lake Hills, TX

Effective for Meters Read On and After June 30, 2009

Supersedes and Replaces "Municipalities of the Central Texas Service Area Utility Service Regulations" dated and previously effective 6/6/06 and "Kyle Service Area Utility Service Regulations" dated and previously effective 12/29/03

#### TEXAS GAS SERVICE COMPANY

Communications Regarding this Tariff Should Be Addressed To:

Texas Gas Service Company 5613 Avenue F Austin, Texas 78751

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section	Description	
1	General Statement	
2	Reserved for Future Rules	
3	Rates and Utility Charges	
4	Conditions of Service	
5	Initiation of Service	
6	Metering and Delivery of Gas	
7	Installation of Equipment	
8	Extension of Facilities	
9	Customer Owned Systems	
10	Security Deposits	
11	Gas Measurement	
12	Meter Reading and Accuracy	
13	Billing and Payment of Bills	
14	Curtailments	
15	Quality of Gas	
16	Service Work	
17	Maintenance of Equipment	
18	Discontinuance of Service	
19	Re-establishment of Service	
20	Notice	
21	Average Bill Calculation Plan	
22	Fees and Cash Deposits	

#### GENERAL STATEMENT

# 1.1 TARIFF APPLICABILITY

Texas Gas Service Company is a gas utility operating within the State of Texas. This Tariff applies to Texas Gas Service Company's Central Texas service area, comprising the Cities of Austin, Cedar Park, Kyle, Rollingwood, Sunset Valley and West Lake Hills. This Tariff supersedes and replaces all tariffs previously approved and applied in said cities.

Service under this Tariff is subject to the original jurisdiction of the municipalities in the Central Texas service area and the Railroad Commission of Texas. The Company will provide service to any person and/or business within its service area in accordance with the rates, terms and conditions provided for in its Tariff and regulations.

## 1.2 RATE SCHEDULES

All Customers shall be served under rate schedules filed with the municipality. Customers shall be assigned to rate schedules in accordance with the class of the particular Customer, the usage which will be made of the gas and that Customer's volume requirements. The Company shall advise the Applicant or Customer regarding the most advantageous rate for his usage if more than one rate is applicable. A Customer assigned to a rate schedule shall remain on that schedule for a minimum of one year except that an assignment made in error may be corrected immediately. In the event of a question regarding the Customer's classification, the questions shall be resolved by reference to the coding of the Customer's primary business in the latest edition of the Standard Industrial Classification Manual of the United States Government's Office Management and Budget.

#### 1.3 DEFINITIONS

The following definitions shall apply to the indicated words as used in this Tariff:

Agricultural Service and Irrigation or Irrigation Pumping Service:

Service to Consumers engaged in agricultural production (SIC Division A - Major Group 01) who use gas for

operating engine-driven pumping equipment.

Applicant: Any person, organization or group of persons or

organizations making a formal request either orally or in

writing for gas service from the Company.

<u>Average Day Usage</u>: The gas demand of a given Customer for gas in any one

month divided by 30. Gas demand is considered to be equivalent to consumption during each billing month, provided however, that when service has been curtailed, demand shall be considered to be actual consumption plus

estimated curtailment during the period.

# **GENERAL STATEMENT (Continued)**

# 1.3 DEFINITIONS (Continued)

Blanket Builder: A builder or someone acting for a builder who is invoiced

for the installation of yardlines.

<u>Commercial Service</u>: Service to Consumers engaged primarily in the sale or

furnishing of goods and services and any usage not

otherwise provided for.

<u>Commission or The Commission</u>: The Railroad Commission of Texas.

<u>Company</u>: Texas Gas Service Company, a division of ONEOK, Inc.

Consumer: Any person or organization receiving gas service from the

Company for his or her own appliances or equipment whether or not the gas is billed directly to him or her. (For example, a rental unit where the utilities are part of the rent, the landlord is a Customer and the tenant is a Consumer.)

<u>Customer</u>: Any person or organization now being billed for gas service

whether used by him or her, or by others.

<u>Domestic Service</u>: Service to any Consumer which consists of gas service used

directly for heating, air conditioning, cooking, water heating and similar purposes whether in a single or multiple

dwelling unit.

Electronic Document: Any document sent electronically via email or internet.

Electronic Fund Transfer (EFT): The process to convert a paper check or electronic bill

payment request to an electronic transfer. Paper checks

received by Company or their agents are destroyed.

## **GENERAL STATEMENT (Continued)**

# 1.3 DEFINITIONS (Continued)

Electronic Radio Transponder (ERT)

Automated Meter Reading (AMR): A device that remotely reads a gas meter.

Expedited Service: Customer request for same day service or service during

non-business hours for connect or reconnect of gas service.

General Rate Schedule: A rate schedule available to all Customers of the appropriate

class or classes for usages indicated therein.

<u>Industrial Service</u>: Service to Consumers engaged primarily in a process which

changes raw or unfinished materials into another form of product. This classification shall embrace all Consumers included in Division A (except Major Groups 01 and 02) and Division D of the Standard Industrial Classification

Manual.

Optional Rate Schedule: A General Rate Schedule which may be selected by a

Customer in lieu of another general schedule but which may

require the installation of special equipment.

Overtime Rate: The fee charged by Company to perform work outside its

normal business hours or on holidays and includes changes to previously scheduled work that must be performed

outside Company's normal business hours.

<u>Power Generation Service</u>: Service to Consumers for the purpose of generating

electricity. This service may be further divided into direct generation in which the gas is used to power the prime mover and indirect generation in which the gas is burned in

a boiler and the generator is steam powered.

Regulatory Authority: The City Council or equivalent municipal governing body of

each respective city in the Central Texas Service Area, or

the Railroad Commission of Texas, as applicable.

## **GENERAL STATEMENT (Continued)**

# 1.3 DEFINITIONS (Continued)

Service Area: The area receiving gas utility service provided by the

Company under the terms of this Tariff.

Special Rate Schedule: A rate schedule designed for a specific Customer.

<u>System</u>: Any group of interconnected pipelines and appurtenances

owned or operated by the Company and independent from

any other such group of facilities.

<u>Temporary Service</u>: Any service which will not be utilized continuously at the

same location for a period of two or more years.

<u>Transportation Rate Schedule</u>: A rate schedule designed for service to any Customer for the

transportation of Customer-owned natural gas through the

Company's distribution system.

<u>Transportation Service</u>: The transportation by the Company of natural gas owned by

someone other than the Company through the Company's

distribution system.

Section 2. [Reserved for future rules]

# TEXAS GAS SERVICE COMPANY Texas Tariff - Central Texas Service Area

Section 3 Page 1

# Section 3: RATES AND UTILITY CHARGES

Please see current Rate Schedules on file with each applicable Regulatory Authority.

# **CONDITION OF SERVICE**

#### 4.1 PROVISION OF SERVICE

The Company will provide gas service to any person or organization located within the Central Texas Service Area from Company's facilities, or in certain cases, the facilities of its supplier, in accordance with the provisions of this Tariff, including the Company's Rate Schedules and Rules of Service.

# 4.2 FEES AND CHARGES

All fees and charges made by the Company to provide and maintain utility services as provided for in this Tariff. If the Customer elects transportation service, the commodity cost of gas shall be determined between the Customer and the Customer's selected supplier.

#### 4.3 RESALE OF GAS

Gas delivered by the Company shall not be redelivered or resold for the use thereof by others unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by the Company; provided, however, that those Customers receiving gas for redistribution to the Customer's tenants may separately meter each tenant's distribution point for the purpose of prorating the Customer's actual amount of gas delivered among the various tenants on a per unit basis.

# 4.5 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE

#### a) Service interruptions

i) The Company shall make all reasonable efforts to prevent interruptions of service. When interruptions occur, the Company will reestablish service within the shortest possible time consistent with prudent operating principles so that the smallest number of Customers is affected.

## **CONDITION OF SERVICE (Continued)**

# 4.5 CONTINUITY OF SERVICE (continued)

- ii) The Company shall make reasonable provisions to meet emergencies resulting from failure of service, and will issue instructions to its employees covering procedures to be followed in the event of an emergency in order to prevent or mitigate interruption or impairment of service.
- iii) In the event of emergency or disaster resulting in disruption of normal service, the Company may, in the public interest, interrupt service to other Customers to provide necessary service to civil defense or other emergency service agencies on a temporary basis until normal service to these agencies can be restored.
- b) Record of interruption. Except for momentary interruptions which do not cause a major disruption of service, the Company shall keep a complete record of all interruptions, both emergency and scheduled. This record shall show the cause of interruptions, date, time duration, location, approximate number of Customers affected, and, in cases of emergency interruptions, the remedy and steps taken to prevent recurrence, if applicable.
- c) Report to Railroad Commission of Texas. The Commission shall be notified in writing within 48 hours of interruptions in service affecting the entire system or any major division thereof lasting more than four hours. The notice shall also state the Company's belief as to the cause of such interruptions. If any service interruption is reported to the Commission otherwise (for example, as a curtailment report or safety report), such other report is sufficient to comply with the terms of this paragraph.
- d) The procedure under which curtailments of service will be made is described in Section 14 of this Tariff.
- e) The Company does not guarantee uninterrupted service to any Customer and shall not be liable for damages resulting from any loss of service to any Customer.

#### 4.6 AVAILABILITY OF TARIFF

A copy of this Tariff including all applicable rate schedules shall be kept in the Company's Central Texas Office and its Division Office in Austin. The Tariff shall be available for examination in the referenced locations to any Customer or Applicant requesting it, during Company's normal business hours and upon reasonable notice to Company, and notice to this effect shall be posted in the Company's office. Upon the request of any Customer or Applicant, the Company shall make copies of the Tariff which may be purchased by the Customer or Applicant at the Company's Central Texas office. The Company may charge for each copy a fee which is not in excess of the Company's reasonable cost to reproduce the material.

## **CONDITION OF SERVICE (Continued)**

#### 4.7 CUSTOMER INFORMATION

The Company shall make available, during normal business hours at its local office, such additional information on Rates and Services as any Customer or Applicant may reasonably request. Upon any Customer's request, the Company shall inform the Customer how to read the Customer's meter. The Company shall annually provide each Customer with notice of the availability of a concise description in English and Spanish of the Customer's rights and the Company's obligations under this Tariff. A new Customer shall be provided with a description at the time service is initiated.

#### 4.8 CUSTOMER COMPLAINTS

Upon complaint to the Company by a Customer either at the Company's office, in writing, or by telephone, the Company shall promptly make a suitable investigation and advise the complainant of the results thereof. It shall keep a record which shows the name and address of all complainants, the date and nature of each complaint, and the adjustment or disposition thereof for a period of one year subsequent to the final disposition of the complaint. However, complaints which require no further action by the Company need not be recorded. Each complainant shall be advised of his or her right to file the complaint with the Regulatory Authority if not satisfied by the Company.

Upon receipt of a complaint, either in writing or by telephone, from the Regulatory Authority on behalf of a Customer, the Company will make a suitable investigation and advise the Regulatory Authority and complainant of the results thereof. An initial response must be made by the next business day. The Company will make a final and complete response within 15 days from the date of the complaint, unless additional time is granted within the 15 day period.

#### 4.9 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

The Customer assumes all responsibility on the Customer's side of the point of delivery for the service supplied or taken. The Company is not liable to a Customer, Consumer or to any other person for property damage, personal injury, business damage, or other loss resulting from a negligent or non-negligent act of the Company that causes an interruption or failure of service. The Customer or Consumer shall release and hold the Company harmless with respect to any such claim.

A Customer and/or Consumer shall be liable for any loss or damage to the Company or to Company's property from any negligent act or omission of any person other than an employee of the Company that adjusts, repairs, disconnects, changes or alters the Company's meter or facilities in any way. The Customer or Consumer shall release and hold the Company harmless with respect to any such claim.

The Customer shall make or procure conveyance to the Company of perpetual right-of-way satisfactory to the Company, across the property owned or controlled by the Customer, for clear access to Company's facilities and to provide service to Customer and/or Consumers.

# **INITIATION OF SERVICE**

#### 5.1 REGULAR SERVICE

Application for service can be made by telephone or through the Internet. Each Applicant must comply with the appropriate requirements of this Tariff before service shall be instituted. No written agreement shall be required for residential service under the standard provisions of this Tariff; commencement of service by the Company and the use of gas service by the Customer shall be evidence of such agreement. Any Customer requesting service under any special provision of this Tariff must execute a written agreement for service in the form prescribed by the Company designating those provisions which shall apply. Each Applicant may be required to produce an identification card bearing a photograph of Applicant and verifiable proof of their right to occupy a specific service address as of a specific date of occupancy.

# 5.2 SPECIAL CONTRACTS

Under certain special conditions, the Company may agree to rates, terms or conditions of service other than those provided in this Tariff. Such service must be established under the terms of a special contract or service agreement. To the extent that the provisions of any special contract are at variance with this Tariff, the provisions of the contract shall apply.

#### 5.3 TEMPORARY SERVICE

Temporary Service shall be furnished under the same rate schedules applicable to regular service of a similar kind.

# 5.4 FEES AND CHARGES

The Company shall charge a non-refundable fee to each Applicant to compensate for the cost involved in initiation or reconnection of service or when service is transferred from one name to another at any location, or whenever a meter is reset or relocated on the same premises at the request of the Customer, all as specified in Section 22.1 of this Tariff.

## **INITIATION OF SERVICE (Continued)**

# 5.4 FEES AND CHARGES (Continued)

Whenever the Applicant requests expedited service, the Company will accomplish the work as expeditiously as possible and the Customer will be charged at the Company's approved rate for service work. Expedited service and the charges therefore shall be made only on request of the Applicant. Whenever service is furnished from the facilities of a third party and the Company must pay any special fees to that that third party, the Company may, at its option, pass that charge through to the Applicant requesting service. See Section 22.1 relating to fees for the above.

#### 5.5 ESTABLISHMENT OF CREDIT

Each Applicant for service shall be required to make a security deposit in accordance with Section 10 of this Tariff to establish and maintain a satisfactory credit standing. The amount of deposit required shall be computed in the same manner for the same class of service; provided however, that a deposit shall be waived if:

- a) The Applicant has been a Customer for the same kind of service within the last two years and did not have more than one occasion in which a bill for service from any such utility service account was delinquent and no disconnection for non-payment was made;
- b) The Applicant furnishes an acceptable letter of credit;
- c) The Applicant demonstrates a satisfactory credit rating by presentation of satisfactory credit references capable of quick, inexpensive verification (applicable to residential Customers only);
- d) The Applicant is 65 years of age or older and has had no outstanding balance for natural gas utility service which accrued within the last two years (applicable to residential Customers only);
- e) The application is made for and in the name of an organization with an acceptable credit rating from an agency providing a credit rating service on a national basis;
- f) The application is made for or guaranteed by an agency of the federal, state or local government.
- g) The Applicant has been determined to be a victim of family violence as defined in Texas Family Code, §71.004. This determination shall be evidenced by the applicant's submission of a certification letter developed by the Texas Council on Family Violence and made available on its web site; or

# **INITIATION OF SERVICE (Continued)**

#### 5.6 GROUNDS FOR REFUSAL TO SERVE

The Company may refuse service to any Applicant for any of the following reasons:

- a) Failure to pay fees, advances or contributions or to make any deposit required for service under this Tariff;
- b) Failure of the Applicant to furnish any service or meter location specified for service under this Tariff;
- c) Existence of an unsafe condition such as a leak in the Applicant's piping system which, in Company's sole opinion, may endanger life or property;
- d) The Applicant is indebted to the Company for the same class of utility service at the same or another service location within the Company's system; or
- e) Delinquency in payment for gas service by another occupant if that person still resides at the premises to be served.

The right to refuse service shall terminate when the Applicant has complied with the Company's requirements or corrected the cause for the refusal to serve.

# 5.7 REASONABLE TIME

The Company shall have a reasonable amount of time to institute service following application therefore or execution of an agreement for service. The time may vary depending on approvals and permits required, the extent of the facilities to be built, and the Company's workload at the time.

## **METERING AND DELIVERY OF GAS**

#### 6.1 METER LOCATION

The Company shall have the sole right to determine the location of the meter in accordance with the needs of the service.

Each Applicant shall furnish and subsequently maintain a suitable location on his or her premises for the Company's meter and related facilities at a point selected by the Company. Meters shall be located where they will be safely accessible for reading and service, adequately ventilated, and not subject to damage. Meters shall not be located within any enclosed area unless the enclosure is solely intended as a meter house. It may be necessary for the Company to install bollards or guard posts around the meters for safety.

#### 6.2 POINT OF DELIVERY

The point of delivery of gas sold by the Company to the Customer shall be at the outlet side of the Company's meter, provided that in those cases in which the Customer owns a section of the underground pipe between the Customer's property line and the meter, the point of delivery shall be at the property line. The title of all gas sold by the Company to the Consumer shall pass from the Company at the point of delivery. The point(s) of delivery and point(s) of redelivery for Transportation Service shall be as provided in the contract entered into between the Customer and the Company.

# 6.3 MULTIPLE METERS

Each Customer or group of Customers located on the same lot or tract of land may be served from a single meter location. The Company may, at its option, permit additional meter locations to simplify installation of facilities or provide better service. Whenever more than one meter location is permitted for the same Customer, the Company shall bill the usage through each meter separately, provided that any combined billings in effect at the time of adoption of this Tariff may be continued until the affected Customer discontinues service or upon order by the Regulatory Authority.

#### 6.4 CONNECTION TO COMPANY FACILITIES

No Consumer shall make any connection or alteration of any kind on or to any of the Company's facilities upstream of the Company's meter or shall permit any other person to make such connection or alteration.

#### INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT

# 7.1 EQUIPMENT FURNISHED BY THE COMPANY

The Company shall furnish and install at its expense, the service pipe from the Company's existing main to the property line nearest the meter and the equipment related thereto, including meter valve and service regulator. Whenever the meter is located at any point other than the property line, the Company shall determine the estimated cost of that portion of the service between the property line and the meter set. This estimate shall be based on the size and footage to be installed, and charged in accordance with Section 8 and other applicable provisions of this Tariff. This estimated amount shall be contributed by the Applicant to the Company before construction, unless the Applicant is a qualified Blanket Builder. Although affixed to or buried in the Customer's property, the entire service and meter set shall become the property of the Company and shall be operated and maintained by the Company.

#### 7.2 EQUIPMENT FURNISHED BY THE APPLICANT

The Applicant shall furnish and install at his or her expense, all piping and equipment required to conduct and utilize the gas furnished, from the outlet of the meter set to the point(s) of utilization and those portions of the service line and meter set not furnished by the Company as described in Paragraph 7.1 above. The adequacy, safety and compliance with applicable codes and ordinances shall be the responsibility of the Applicant and no action of the Company in accordance with this Tariff shall release the Applicant of the responsibility for the facilities installed by him or her.

# 7.3 STATUTES, CODES, AND ORDINANCES

All piping and installations owned by the Applicant shall comply with all applicable legal requirements, whether federal, state, county, municipal, or otherwise, and shall be properly designed for the pressures and volumes to be handled. In those locations where there are no applicable state or local requirements, the applicable provisions of the National Fuel Gas Code 54, ANSI Z223.1, and any amendments thereto shall apply.

#### 7.4 CHECKS AND TESTS

The Company shall have the right to check new installations prior to initiation of service and to make any test of the Applicant's facilities it deems necessary.

#### 7.5 REFUSAL TO SERVE

The Company shall refuse service to any Applicant who refuses entry for observation or whose facilities do not comply with the applicable provisions of this Tariff. The right to refuse service shall terminate with the correction of the condition(s) which was cause for refusal. Initiation of service, however, shall not be considered to be acceptance or approval by the Company of such facilities.

#### **EXTENSION OF FACILITIES**

#### 8.1 EXTENSION OF MAINS

The Company shall install the necessary facilities to provide service to Applicants whose premises are located beyond the Company's existing distribution facilities in accordance with the provisions of this Section. The expenditure for such extensions must either be cost justified or the Applicant(s) must make a refundable advance in the amount necessary to justify the installation.

# 8.2 DESIGN AND COST OF FACILITIES

As soon as practical after an application for service is received, the Company shall determine the extent of the facilities required to serve the new business and the cost thereof. This cost shall include all amounts to be spent for system improvements necessary to deliver the required gas, such as mains, regulator and meter stations, upgrading and/or reinforcement, all in accordance with the Company's current practice. Whenever the Company chooses to install facilities of greater capacity than would be required to serve the new business for which the application is being made or to permit supply from another source, the estimate of costs shall be based on only the size and capacity normally used to serve requirements similar to that of the Applicant.

#### 8.3 ALLOWANCE FOR NEW BUSINESS

The Company shall also determine the number of existing potential permanent Customers located along the route of the extension expected to be served there from. To be included, the occupant of each premise must request service and demonstrate capability for using such service through a major gas burning appliance. Single or groups of individually owned mobile homes shall be included only if the wheels and hitch have been removed from each mobile home and/or substantial improvements have been made to the property. Mobile home parks may be served either through a master meter or individual meters served by a Company-owned system, provided that required mains can be installed and dedicated streets or rights-of-way have been provided to the Company for installation of facilities as evidenced by agreement executed on the Company's form. An allowance to be determined by the Company may be given for each potential Customer whose premises exist at the time of application to be served from the proposed main extension. In order to qualify for this allowance, the Customer must file an application and agree to initiate gas service upon completion of the Company's facilities.

# **EXTENSION OF FACILITIES (Continued)**

#### 8.4 ADVANCES

The difference between the total cost of facilities as determined in Paragraph 8.2 above and the initial allowance if any, shall constitute the required advance. All advances must be made in cash. The Applicant shall have 90 calendar days after notification of the amount required to execute an extension agreement on the Company's form and pay the required advance. At the end of that time, the Company may revise its estimates to reflect any changes in costs or conditions which will affect the amount of the advance. The Company may waive collection of any advance based on an economic analysis of the project.

## 8.5 CONSTRUCTION OF FACILITIES

As soon as practical after the advance has been paid or it has been determined that no advance will be required, the Company shall begin construction of the required facilities and thereafter prosecute the work with reasonable diligence. The Company shall not be responsible for delays in the construction of the facilities occasioned by events or conditions reasonably beyond the Company's control. Whenever the construction of the new facilities requires the acquisition of rights-of-way across the Applicants(s) land(s), these rights-of-way shall be provided by the Applicant(s) in the Company's name and on its form at no cost to the Company (except for fees involved in the recording of documents).

#### <u>8.6</u> <u>REVIEW OF ADVANCES</u>

The Company shall review each extension agreement on the first anniversary of the signing of that agreement. If the extension provided for in the agreement has not been installed through no fault of the Company, the agreement shall be considered to be terminated and a complete refund made to the Applicant(s). Once the extension has been installed and service has been initiated, the Company shall thereafter review the extension agreement at its second through fifth "in-service" anniversary dates. At each review, the number of Customers then served directly from the extension shall be compared with the number served on the last prior anniversary date. A refund equal to the standard amount then being given as specified in Paragraph 8.3 hereof, shall be given for each additional Customer served, provided that the total of the refunds given does not exceed the cost of the extension of facilities.

## **EXTENSION OF FACILITIES (Continued)**

#### 8.7 REFUND LIMITATIONS

The Company may, at its sole option, make a refund at any time. In no case, however, shall a refund be given unless the number of Customers then served is greater than the number for whom refunds have previously been given. No refund shall be given which shall cause the total refunds to be greater than the total amount of the advance. No interest shall be paid on any advance made under the provisions of this Section. At the end of the five year period, any remaining amount of the advance shall be retained by the Company as a contribution in aid of construction.

#### 8.8 DELIVERY OF REFUNDS

When a refund is due, a check in the appropriate amount and a letter setting forth the method of calculation of the refund and the balance remaining unrefunded shall be made to the person or business in whose name the extension agreement is made or to his or her assignee. If that letter is returned undelivered, the check shall be cancelled and the next review made without regard to that refund. All sums described in this Paragraph which are returned undelivered and remain unclaimed in the Company's possession for a period of six months following expiration of the five year period of the extension agreement shall be retained by the Company and considered a contribution in aid of construction.

#### **CUSTOMER-OWNED SYSTEMS**

#### 9.1 INDIVIDUALLY METERED SYSTEMS

The Company shall not render service to any Customer through a meter not connected to a system owned by the Company or one of the Company's suppliers.

#### 9.2 MASTER METERS

The Company shall provide service through a master meter into the piping systems of others to be distributed to more than one Consumer, except when the gas served is resold to those Consumers on either a commodity or separate cost of service basis; provided, however, that those Customers purchasing gas for redistribution to the Customer's own tenants only on the Customer's premises may separately meter each tenant distribution point for the purpose of prorating the Consumer's actual purchase price of gas delivered among the various tenants on a per unit basis, and further provided that the provisions of this Section 9 shall not preclude the Company from supplying natural gas to a third party for resale to the public as fuel for natural gas powered vehicles (NGV's).

#### **SECURITY DEPOSITS**

# 10.1 REQUIREMENTS

The Company shall require a security deposit from any present or prospective Customer in accordance with Paragraph 5.5 and 19.1 of this Tariff to guarantee payment of bills, and from any present Customer who during the last 12 consecutive months has on more than one occasion paid its utility bill after becoming delinquent. The amount of the deposit shall not exceed one-sixth of the estimated annual billings for similar Customers. However, the deposit requirement may, at the option of the Company be based on annual usage experienced at the particular address with application of one-sixth of the annual amount as determined as the required deposit. If actual use is at least twice the amount of the estimated billings, a new deposit requirement may be calculated and an additional deposit may be required within two days. The deposit shall be refunded to residential Customers when the Customer has paid 12 consecutive bills without having service disconnected for non-payment, and without having one or more occasion in which a bill was delinquent or a payment was returned, and the Customer is not currently delinquent.

#### 10.2 RECEIPTS

The Company shall maintain such records as may be necessary to permit any Customer to receive any deposit return to which he or she is entitled without presentation of the receipt. A record of any unclaimed deposits shall be maintained by the Company for at least 4 years.

# 10.3 INTEREST

The Company shall pay interest on all security deposits for the time held at the rate as set by the Public Utility Commission annually except when:

- a) The deposit is held 30 days or less;
- b) Notice is sent to the Customer's last known address that the deposit is no longer required;
- c) The service to which the deposit relates has been discontinued; or
- d) All or any part of the deposit has been applied to a delinquent account.

Interest on deposits earned during the preceding year shall be paid to the Customer during the first quarter of each calendar year. Payment shall be made either by check or as a credit on the monthly bill at the Company's option.

#### 10.4 RETURN OF DEPOSITS

Deposits on residential accounts returned to the Customer in accordance with Paragraph 10.1 above shall be applied in the first calendar quarter following the month in which the good payment record is established. Whenever the deposit of any Customer is returned to the Customer, the Company shall pay all previously unpaid interest with the payment.

# **SECURITY DEPOSITS (Continued)**

#### 10.5 ACCEPTABLE FORMS OF DEPOSIT

Any one of the following forms of credit security may be accepted from Customers and Applicants for service:

- a) A cash deposit of as much as one-sixth (1/6) the estimated annual billings for service requested; but no less than the minimum deposit set forth in Section 22.2;
- b) A nontransferable, irrevocable letter of credit from an established financial institution, payable for as much as one-sixth (1/6) the estimated annual billings for services requested and, which can be drawn on for a minimum of two (2) years; but no less than the minimum deposit set forth in Section 22.2; or
- c) A surety bond issued by a reputable insurance company which can be drawn on for a minimum of two years.

#### **GAS MEASUREMENT**

# 11.1 PRESSURE

The standard serving and measurement pressure shall be 4 ounces (0.25 psig) or 7" Water Column above the standard atmospheric pressure in the area served. Standard serving pressure and the atmospheric pressure determined to be the average in the Central Texas Service Area, are 14.40 psia and 14.65 psig, respectively. The Consumer and the Company may, at the Company's option, agree to a higher serving pressure. Service regulators shall be set as close as practical to the standard serving pressure under a load condition of approximately 10 percent of meter capacity. Increases in serving pressure because of the inadequacy of the Consumer's facilities shall not be permitted.

#### 11.2 UNIT OF MEASUREMENT

The standard unit of measurement shall be one hundred cubic feet (Ccf). A cubic foot shall be defined as the amount of gas which occupies a volume of one cubic foot at 14.65 psig and at a temperature of 60 degrees Fahrenheit. Whenever the Company delivers gas at any pressure other than the standard serving pressure, volumes shall be corrected to the standard serving pressure in the manner provided in this Tariff, provided however, that such correction may be made to any other standard provided in the rate schedules or special agreement under which the Customer is served. The Company may, at its sole option, waive the correction of measurement for temperature deviation.

#### 11.3 BILLING UNIT

Unless otherwise specified on the rate schedules or by special agreement, Customers shall be billed on the basis of Ccf measured at or corrected to the standard serving pressure. The index of the meter shall be the sole determinant of volumes passing through the meter. Whenever the meter reads directly in hundreds or smaller units, a reading of one-half a billing unit or more (500 Cf or more) shall be considered a whole billing unit. Readings of less than one-half a unit shall be disregarded for billing. In those cases in which heating value is used as the billing unit, the calculation of the heating value in BTU's shall be made in accordance with Paragraph 11.7 of this Tariff.

#### 11.4 PRESSURE CORRECTION - STANDARD METERING

Whenever gas is delivered to any Customer served under a rate schedule which provides for standard metering, the Company shall correct actual volumes measured to volumes which would have been measured if the gas had been delivered at the standard serving pressure. Corrections shall be made by one of the following methods.

#### **GAS MEASUREMENT (Continued)**

# 11.4 PRESSURE CORRECTION - STANDARD METERING (continued)

- a) The Company may install pressure or pressure and temperature compensating measurement equipment whenever the cost of this equipment is justified by the volumes served. Such measurements shall be equipped with devices which mechanically or electronically correct the actual measured volumes in accordance with Boyle's Law. Variations in actual atmospheric pressure shall not be considered.
- b) The Company may use factor billing whenever the volumes to be delivered are too small to justify special metering. The factor shall be determined by dividing the actual serving pressure by the standard serving pressure, both expressed in absolute units based on the standard atmospheric pressure in the area as specified in Paragraph 11.1 hereof. This factor shall be applied to the measured volumes to determine the correct number of billing units.

#### 11.5 METERING - SPECIAL POSITIVE DISPLACEMENT

Whenever gas is delivered to any Customer served under a rate schedule which provides for special metering and positive displacement or turbine type metering is used, all volumes shall be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the manufacturer of the meter. Meters may be read in actual volumes which shall then be corrected to the standard billing unit or may be furnished with devices designed to correct the actual volumes to the standard billing units. The following criteria shall be used in the correction of volumes or design and calibration of correcting devices.

- a) Pressure correction shall be made in accordance with Boyle's Law. Calculations based on pressure reading on a continuously recording chart shall use the average pressure indicated thereon applied to the measured volumes. Correcting devices shall be set at the specified serving pressure and the service regulators shall be adjusted as close to that pressure as practical. Corrections for deviations from Boyle's Law ("supercompressability") may be made whenever the volumes delivered justify the cost of making such corrections.
- b) The flowing temperature of the gas shall be assumed to be 60 degrees Fahrenheit unless temperature correction is provided. Corrections shall be made in accordance with Charles' Law. Whenever a continuously recording instrument is used, the average temperature indicated thereon shall be applied to the measured volumes.
- c) The specific gravity of the gas shall be assumed to be the value last indicated by test or reported by the upstream pipeline supplier prior to the installation of the metering facilities. Whenever subsequent reports or test indicate significant changes in gravity, volume calculations shall be changed prospectively to reflect the new gravity.

#### **GAS MEASUREMENT (Continued)**

# 11.6 METERING - SPECIAL ORIFICE

Whenever gas is delivered to any Customer served under a rate schedule with provisions for special metering and orifice metering is used, all volumes shall be determined in accordance with the recommendations for measuring gas contained in the American Gas Association's Gas Measurement Committee Report No. 3, Orifice Metering of Natural Gas (1992), and subsequent revisions thereof. Orifice meter charts shall be calculated using a standard integrating device or other method recognized in the industry. The following criteria shall be used in the correction of volumes or design and calibration of orifice metering:

- a) Correction for deviation of gas from Boyle's Law shall be made in accordance with Report No. 3.
- b) Temperature of gas passing the meter shall be assumed to be 60 degrees Fahrenheit unless suitable equipment has been installed to measure actual flowing temperature. The arithmetical average of the temperature recorded during each meter charge period while the gas is flowing shall be used in the computations of volumes during the period.
- c) The standard atmospheric pressure for the area served shall be used for measurement irrespective of any variation in the actual barometric pressure.
- d) The specific gravity of the gas shall be assumed to be the value last obtained in a spot test made with a gravity balance, impact type unit or other acceptable method. Tests shall be made as frequently as found necessary to assure accurate measurement.

# 11.7 BTU MEASUREMENT

The heating value of gas for use in billing shall be defined as the gross thermal value of one cubic foot of gas at a pressure of 14.73 psia and temperature of 60 degrees Fahrenheit on a dry basis. The number of billing units delivered shall be determined by multiplying the heating value determined in accordance with this Section by the volumes delivered during the period, expressed in the same units and measured at, or corrected to 14.73 psia and 60 degrees Fahrenheit, and multiplying by the factor necessary to convert the heating value/measurement units to the billing units provided in the appropriate rate schedule. The heating value of the gas shall be determined using one of the following methods:

a) Processing a continuous sample of the main stream at the meter location through a recording calorimeter of a standard type;

## **GAS MEASUREMENT (Continued)**

# 11.7 BTU MEASUREMENT (continued)

- b) Analysis of gas samples accumulated from the main stream at the meter location in a sample bottle of an approved type;
  - i) passing the sample through a recording calorimeter of a standard type;
  - ii) passing the sample through a flow calorimeter of a standard type; or
  - passing the sample through a chromatograph to determine the chemical composition and calculating the total heating value from the sum of the constituents.

#### 11.8 CUSTOMER-OWNED METERS

A Customer may install and operate a meter or any other device to measure gas volumes, pressure, temperature, BTU content or specific gravity downstream of the point of delivery. Unless expressly otherwise agreed to by the Company and Customer, however, the Company's meter and equipment shall be the sole determinant of volumes for Company's billing purposes.

## METER READING AND ACCURACY

#### 12.1 METERING READING

Meters shall be read as nearly as may be practical on the same day of each calendar month. Whenever a reading of a general service meter is missed or the meter is not registering, the Company shall estimate the amount of gas used during the period. Such estimates shall be based on:

- a) That Customer's use of gas during the same period(s) in previous years;
- b) That Customer's normal use of gas during preceding months; or
- c) The use of a similar Customer for the period missed.

If practical, an actual reading shall be made after two consecutive estimated bills. All meters in Special Service shall be read at least once a month. Whenever such a meter fails to register or is misread, the amount of gas used during the preceding period shall be estimated using data applicable to that Special Service Customer only. The Company will make a special reading of any meter upon request and payment of a service charge will be made in accordance with Section 22.1. The time of the special reading shall be agreed upon with the Customer so that he or she may be present. If the original reading was in error (subject to consumption between the two readings) the service charge will be refunded to the Customer.

#### 12.2 ACCESS TO THE METER

The Customer shall permit the Company safe access to the meter at all reasonable times for reading thereof and at all reasonable times for reading, maintenance, testing, or replacement of the meter. Upon the Customer's failure or refusal to grant such access, the Company may issue a written notice to the Customer, advising them the situation must be corrected and access granted within 10 days and that failure to do so can result in the disconnection of service and removal of the meter. Additional fees may apply and will be assessed to such Customer as specified in Section 22.1.

#### 12.3 METER ACCURACY

The accuracy limit of all Company meters is established at two percent (2%) fast or slow. Any meter found to be registering outside of the limits of accuracy shall immediately be removed or repaired. As long as the meter is operating within the limits of accuracy, it shall be the conclusive determination as to the quantities of gas delivered to the Customer on whose service it is set.

#### 12.4 METER TESTING AT CUSTOMER REQUEST

The Company shall have the right to remove and/or test the meter used to determine the quantity of gas delivered. The Customer may request that the Company make a special test of the meter through which he or she is served. Requests for such tests shall be made in writing and the Company shall have 10 days after receipt of the request to remove the meter for testing or to test the meter in place. Tests on removed meters shall be conducted within a reasonable time. If the test is to be performed after the period of presumed accuracy listed by the manufacturer or if the test is to be performed for a residential or small

# METER READING AND ACCURACY (Continued)

# 12.4 METER TESTING AT CUSTOMER REQUEST (Continued)

commercial Customer for whom no such test have been performed within the previous four (4) years for the same Customer at the same location, no service charge will be assessed. Otherwise, the Customer shall pay a service charge for such test as specified in Section 22.1.

## 12.5 BILLING ADJUSTMENTS - GENERAL SERVICE

Whenever it has been determined that a meter reading and the subsequent billing has been in error, the Company shall recalculate the affected bill(s). If the date and amount of the error can be definitely fixed, the Company shall refund or may bill the affected Customer for the entire difference between the actual bills rendered and the amount which should have been billed. If a meter is found to have registered inaccurately (such as a meter found to be registering fast or slow), the Company shall refund or bill an amount equal to the difference between the actual bills rendered and the amount which would have been billed if the meter had been 100 percent accurate during the time since the last previous test or the last six months, whichever is less. If the meter is found not to have registered, then the rebilling shall be limited to a three-month period previous to the time the meter is found not to be registering. The determination of amounts used but not metered is to be based on consumption during other like periods by the same Customer at the same location, when available, and on consumption under similar conditions at the same location or of other similarly situated Customers, when not available. Undercharges billed to the Customer may be repaid in a series of equal installments over a reasonable period of time. This Paragraph shall not apply to meter errors found as a result of routine testing in the Company's or its designee's meter shop.

#### 12.6 PROVISIONS FOR SPECIAL SERVICE

The following modifications shall apply to the provisions of this Section for all Special Service rate schedules and service under special written agreements:

- a) Orifice and turbine meters shall be tested at least four times per year at intervals not to exceed 120 days. Should the Customer so elect, tests shall be made in the presence of his or her representative.
- b) Whenever a meter is found to be registering above or below the limits of accuracy, adjustment of the bill (either up or down) shall be limited to the monthly billing subsequent to the last meter test. The adjustment shall be made upon the basis of the best data available, using the first of the following methods, whichever is most appropriate:

# METER READING AND ACCURACY (Continued)

# 12.6 PROVISIONS FOR SPECIAL SERVICE (continued)

- i) by using registration of Customer's check meter(s);
- ii) by correcting the error, if the percentage of error is ascertainable by calibration test or mathematical calculation; or
- by estimating the quantity of gas delivered by comparison with deliveries during the preceding period under similar conditions when accurate registration was obtained.

#### 12.7 PERIODIC TESTS

The Company shall make periodic tests of meters, associated devices and instruments to assure their accuracy. Such tests shall be scheduled within the calendar year or earlier, when the interval is stated in years; or within the calendar month, or earlier when the interval is stated in months. The basic periodic test interval shall be no longer than provided for in the manufacturer's recommendations, a copy of which is available upon request.

## **BILLING AND PAYMENT OF BILLS**

#### 13.1 RENDERING OF BILLS

Bills for all service shall be rendered monthly as promptly as feasible after the meter has been read. Bills shall be due and payable in full on or before the due date, which shall be stated on the face of the bill and shall not be earlier than fifteen (15) days after the bill is mailed (including electronic mail). Bills shall be considered to have been rendered when deposited in the United States Mail with postage prepaid thereon or, when the customer has elected to receive billings via electronic mail, when the electronic document has been sent. Payment shall be considered received when the correct amount has been received at the appropriate Company office or one of its authorized pay stations. If not paid in full by the date due, the bill shall be considered delinquent.

## 13.2 BILLING PERIOD

Bills shall be rendered at regular monthly intervals unless otherwise authorized or unless service is rendered for a period of less than a month.

#### 13.3 ESTIMATED BILLS

In the event any meter cannot be read at the end of the billing period, the Company shall bill the Customer on the basis of an estimated consumption determined in accordance with Paragraph 12.1 of this Tariff. The next bill based on actual reading after an estimated bill shall make any corrections necessary to bring the Customer's account to a current status for the actual consumption.

# 13.4 DISPUTED BILLS

- a) In the event of a dispute between the Customer and the Company regarding the bill, the Company will make such investigation as is required by the particular case and report the results to the Customer. If the Customer wishes to obtain the benefits of Paragraph b) of this subsection, notification of the dispute must be given to the Company prior to the date the bill becomes delinquent. In the event the dispute is not resolved, the Company shall inform the Customer of the complaint procedures of the appropriate regulatory authority.
- b) Notwithstanding any other subsection of this section, the Customer shall not be required to pay the disputed portion of the bill which exceeds the amount of that Customer's average usage for the billing period at current rates until the earlier of the following: resolution of the dispute or the expiration of the 60 day period beginning on the day the disputed bill is issued. For purposes of this section only, the Customer's average usage for the billing period shall be the average of the Customer's usage for the same billing period during the preceding two years. Where no previous usage history exists, the average usage shall be estimated on the basis of usage levels of similar Customers and under similar conditions.

## **BILLING AND PAYMENT OF BILLS (Continued)**

#### 13.5 PAYMENT RE-PROCESSING FEE

The Company may charge or add to the Customer's account and collect a fee (as provided in Section 22.1 d) to recover costs for reprocessing any payment, including paper check, electronic transfer payment, and debit or credit card payment, that has been rejected or returned to the Company by the bank for any reason other than bank error.

## 13.6 <u>E-BILL</u>

The Customer may at its option receive bills and notices via electronic mail, thereby eliminating paper bills and notices.

#### 13.7 BILLING OF MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

The Company may utilize its billing system to bill and process payments to a third party financial institution for financing the purchase of natural gas appliance related equipment, and related repairs. Additionally, the Company may enter into an agreement with a financial institution and the Customer in connection with the above. The decision whether to utilize the billing system in this manner or enter into third party agreements to facilitate the transactions described above shall lie within the Company's sole discretion.

#### 13.8 ALTERNATIVE PAYMENT OPTIONS

The Company may, at its option and discretion, contract with vendors to provide various payment options to Customers for paying their bills for gas service and to collect such payments. These alternative payment options may be performed electronically, telephonically, and/or in person and may include payment by automatic bank draft, credit card, check or cash.

#### CURTAILMENTS

#### 14.1 CURTAILMENTS

Whenever the capacity of the Company's system(s) or limitations of the gas supplied to the Company from any source, is not sufficient to meet its total service commitments, interruptions or curtailments of service shall be made at such times and to the extent necessary to reduce the anticipated demand to the available supply. All such interruptions and curtailments shall be made in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

#### 14.2 PRIORITY CLASSES

All Customers served by the Company shall be classified into one of the following priority groups.

- a) Gas sold for use in residences and by hospitals, schools, universities, colleges, churches, public safety buildings, multi-family dwellings and apartments, for uses other than electric generation.
- b) Gas sold for agricultural purposes.
- c) This category consists of the following:
  - 1. gas sold to small commercial and small industrial Customers using 200 MCF or less on an average day;
  - 2. gas sold to industrial Customers as plant protection gas, which is defined as the minimum gas required to prevent physical harm to the plant facilities or danger to plant personnel, including but not limited to gas for pilot lights. This includes the protection of such material in process as would otherwise be destroyed, but shall not include gas required to maintain plant production;
  - 3. gas sold to commercial or industrial Customers used to provide water heating, heating and cooling for human comfort in the plant or office areas; and/or
  - 4. gas sold for use in power generating plants for start up, safety and flame stabilization.
- d) Gas sold to commercial Customers using more than 200 MCF, but less than 1,500 MCF on an average day.
- e) Gas sold to small industrial Customers using more than 200 MCF and less than 3,000 MCF on an average day, provided such user has no economically feasible alternate fuel.

#### **CURTAILMENTS** (Continued)

- f) This category consists of the following:
  - gas sold to industrial Customers for feedstock use where the gas volume is more than 200 MCF and less than 3,000 MCF on an average day; feedstock being defined as natural gas used for its chemical properties as a raw material in creating an end product. Any such Customer must prorate its demand for gas and must maximize its use of all other sources of gas; and/or
  - 2. small public utility electric generating systems which use less than 3,000 MCF on an average day.
- g) Gas sold for use in existing power generating plants for the generation of electricity which is used to serve Customers whose usage falls within the descriptions above and small commercial and industrial Customers using 20,000 KWH or less on an average day.
- h) This category consists of the following:
  - 1. gas sold for use by commercial Customers in excess of 1,500 MCF on an average day;
  - 2. small industrial Customers not qualifying under any of the above.
- i) All gas sold for use in existing power generating plants for the generation of electricity not included in any of the above.
- j) This category consists of the following:
  - 1. gas sold to large users of gas, in excess of 3,000 MCF on an average day, for fuel for which alternate fuels are not technically feasible, such as in applications requiring precise temperature controls and precise flame characteristics.
  - 2. gas sold for feedstock as defined above, in excess of 3,000 MCF on an average day.
- k) Gas sold for any use, including boiler fuel and other indirect flame applications, in excess of 3,000 MCF on an average day and any other use which does not qualify under a preceding priority.

#### **CURTAILMENTS** (Continued)

#### 14.3 METHOD OF CURTAILMENT

Curtailment shall be ordered ratably insofar as feasible within each priority group served by the same system: provided however, that the Company may provide by rate schedule for two or more subgroups within any priority class other than Priorities A and B. Total curtailment during any calendar year shall be made to the end, insofar as feasible, that all Customers within a priority group or subgroup served by the same system may be curtailed in the same proportion that each Customer's total requirements during the year bears to the total requirements of all Consumers in that priority group or subgroup.

#### 14.4 CLASS AND GROUP CURTAILMENTS

No curtailment shall be applied to any Customer at any time when any Consumer in a lower (I.E., higher numbered) priority group or subgroup, who is served by the same system, has not been directed by the Company to effect full curtailment of service.

#### 14.5 NOTIFICATION AND PENALTIES

The Company shall notify in advance each Customer to be curtailed under the provisions of this Section, the extent and amount of the curtailment required from him. If, after notification, any Customer (other than a Customer in Priority A) fails to curtail during the required period or to the amount required, such Customer shall pay any penalty provided for in the rate schedules under which he or she is served. In addition, the Company shall have the right to disconnect any Customer who fails to curtail as notified without further notice if service to Consumers in Priority A and B is threatened.

# 14.6 SUSPENSION OF THIS SECTION

This curtailment procedure may be suspended by the Company during any emergency when life or property is endangered. See Section 4.5.

#### **QUALITY OF GAS**

#### 15.1 HEATING VALUE

Gas delivered to Consumers in all service areas shall have an average gross heating value of at least 900 British Thermal Units per cubic foot measured when saturated with water vapor at a pressure of 14.73 psia and temperature of 60 degrees Fahrenheit. Gas of lesser heating value may be delivered for short periods, providing that the average heating value for the calendar month in which the reduction occurs is equal to or greater than the standard and that the burning characteristics of the gas are not significantly altered.

#### 15.2 CHARACTER OF GAS

All gas furnished to Consumers in the Central Texas Service Area shall be of merchantable quality suitable for use in standard gas burning appliances. Merchantable quality shall mean that the gas must be commercially free from dust, resins, water and hydrocarbons in liquid form at the pressure and temperature at which the gas is delivered.

#### 15.3 ODORIZATION

All gas shall be odorized with a chemical odorant at a sufficient rate to make it readily detectable. Gas containing enough natural odorant as prescribed by the Railroad Commission of Texas need not be odorized unless the odorant level drops below the acceptable level.

#### SERVICE WORK

# 16.1 CERTAIN SERVICES PROVIDED AT NO CHARGE

When a Customer or Consumer smells or detects natural gas and contacts the Company, the Company shall provide to the Consumer at no-charge to the Customer or Consumer leakage and pressure investigations to ensure that unsafe conditions do not exist. Where leakage or unsafe conditions are determined by the Company to be in the Customer's or Consumer's piping or equipment, the Customer or Consumer will be so advised and service will be discontinued until such time that all leakage and other unsafe conditions have been properly corrected by the Customer or Consumer. In addition, when service is initiated, gas air adjustments on a standard domestic and commercial gas range and water heater will be made.

Any other work performed on any Consumer's appliances or house piping will be on a charge basis.

#### 16.2 OTHER SERVICE

The Company may have personnel available for and may undertake other service work on the Consumer's premises on a charge basis, as time permits. Charges shall be made at the Company's standard rate in the Service Area and such work and the associated revenues and costs shall be considered non-utility.

#### 16.3 EXPEDITED SERVICE

A Customer may request expedited service initiation. (See Section 22 – Fees and Deposits).

#### 16.4 NO ACCESS

Charged to any Customer who requests a specific time for service, if the Company agrees to the time, sends appropriate personnel to the appointed location and the Customer is not present to allow access to the premises. (See Section 22 – Fees and Deposits)

# **MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT**

### 17.1 MAINTENANCE BY COMPANY

The Company shall maintain all facilities owned by it and shall be responsible for the safe conduct and handling of the gas until it passes the point of delivery. The Company's representative shall have the right to enter the Customer's premises at any reasonable time, in the event of an emergency at any time, to read the meter or make any necessary inspection, repair, adjustment, or replacement of any property owned by the Company.

#### 17.2 MAINTENANCE BY THE CUSTOMER

The Customer shall maintain all facilities owned by him or her and shall be responsible for the safe conduct and handling of the gas after it passes the point of delivery. The Customer shall remove, repair or adjust any Customer-owned property which may pose a threat of damage to the property of the Company. The Customer shall take all reasonable means to assure that no one other than an employee of the Company shall adjust, repair, disconnect or change the meter or other Company facilities in any way. In case of loss or damage to the Company's property from the negligence or willful acts of the Customer or Consumer or the Customer's representatives, the Customer will reimburse the Company for all costs of repairing or replacing the damaged property, including any costs of collection such as attorney's fees.

### 17.3 LEAKS - RIGHT TO DISCONNECT FOR

The Customer or Consumer shall give the Company notice of any leaking or escaping gas as soon as it is detected. Upon receipt of this notice, the Company shall investigate the matter as promptly as feasible under the circumstances. If the Company's test indicates leakage in the Customer's or Consumer's facilities, the Company shall have the right to disconnect service immediately until the Customer or Consumer has had the condition corrected. If leakage is found to be from Company owned facilities, the Company shall have the right to disconnect service for a reasonable period of time until it can be corrected by the Company. The Company shall have the right to disconnect service immediately if any of the Customer's or Consumer's appliances or equipment is, in the Company's opinion, operating in an unsafe manner.

# 17.4 FACILITIES CURRENTLY OWNED BY THE CUSTOMER

Any facilities downstream of the meter installed by the Customer shall remain the property and responsibility of the Customer. Whenever the condition of the facility is such that replacement is required, the work shall be done by the Company pursuant to the provisions of subsection 17.7 of this Tariff. New facilities will continue to be installed pursuant to subsections 7.1 and 7.2 of this Tariff.

# MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT (Continued)

### 17.5 RESPONSIBILITY

Nothing in this Section shall make the Company responsible for the safe upkeep of any Customer or Consumer owned facilities.

#### 17.6 RELOCATION OF COMPANY FACILITIES

- a) A charge of not more than actual cost may be made for relocating a meter or other Company equipment on the same premises at the request of the Customer or Consumer.
- b) If the Company shall for its own convenience and not for the safety or convenience of the Customer, change the point of delivery or change the location of its equipment on private property, the Company shall bear the expense.

# 17.7 REPLACEMENT OF CUSTOMER-OWNED PIPING

- a) When repair or replacement of Customer-owned piping becomes necessary due to deterioration of the line, damage to the line (except when caused by Customer or Customer's agent), relocation of the Company's distribution main, or for other safety reasons, the Company will relocate Customer's meter to the exterior of the building wall, as close as possible to the existing stub out (where piping exits the structure), and will replace the service piping up to the stub out. The Company will own and be responsible for all service piping from the main line to the meter, and Customer will own and be responsible for all piping from the meter to the building.
- b) The Customer will be billed for all costs of the meter relocate and pipeline replacement.
- c) In the absence of any provision contained in a deed of dedication authorizing the Company to install the service piping and meter on the Customer's premises, the owner of the premises shall execute an agreement establishing the meter location, authorizing the Company to install or replace the line, and granting Company access for such work. If the Customer or owner of the premises refuses to give Company personnel or Company-authorized personnel appropriate access to the property for purposes of installation, the Customer will retain responsibility for his/her facilities and shall bear the expense of any replacement or repairs.

#### **DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE**

### 18.1 BY CUSTOMER

The Customer shall be responsible for all charges for gas service from the time Customer gives notice of the intention to discontinue service until the Company has read the meter, or for 5 working days from the date of such notice, whichever is the shorter period of time.

#### 18.2 FOR NON-PAYMENT

The Company shall have the right to discontinue service to any Customer for non-payment of bills or other charges authorized by this Tariff or the applicable rate schedules, following the due date specified in Section 13.1 hereof. Before discontinuing service for non-payment, the Company shall mail a separate written notice to the Customer in English and Spanish with the words "TERMINATION NOTICE" or similar language prominently displayed. This notice shall include a telephone number to contact the Company, the amount of the delinquent bill and the date by which the bill must be paid to avoid disconnection, and a statement of how to contact the Company in case of illness or other emergency. If a representative of the Company makes an attempt to collect a past due amount, a collection fee per visit shall be assessed to such Customers as specified in Section 22.1.

No Customer shall be disconnected for non-payment:

- a) Within a period of 5 working days after mailing of the notice or the day following the date indicated in the notice, whichever is the later time.
- b) After full payment of the delinquent bill except when there is not sufficient time to advise Company's service personnel of receipt of the payment.
- c) Before 7:00 AM or after 7:00 PM on any day or on Friday, Saturday, Sunday, holiday, or day before a holiday unless Company personnel are available the following day for the purpose of reconnecting service.

#### **DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE (Continued)**

# 18.2 FOR NON-PAYMENT (Continued)

d) If within 5 working days after the date of delinquency of the bill the Company receives a written request from the Customer not to discontinue service for health reasons and the request is accompanied by a written statement from a licensed physician. Upon receipt of such request, the Company will suspend termination of service for a period up to 20 days. The Customer shall sign an installment agreement which provides for payment of such service along with timely payments for subsequent monthly billings.

### 18.3 SPECIAL CONDITIONS

The Company shall have the right to discontinue service to any Consumer for any of the following reasons:

- a) Without notice for the presence of what the Company considers to be an unsafe condition on the Consumer's premises or if an emergency exists;
- b) Without notice for willful destruction or damage to or tampering with the Company's property by the Consumer or by others with knowledge or negligence of the Consumer;
- c) Within 5 working days after written notice if the Consumer uses his or her equipment in any way which causes or creates a potential for adverse affect on the Company's service to others;
- d) Without notice if failure to curtail by such Consumer endangers the supply to Consumers in Priority Class A or B;
- e) 5 working days after written notice from the Company for refusal to grant Company personnel or its designee's access to the Consumer's premises at any reasonable time for any lawful purpose;
- f) 5 working days after written notice from the Company for use, sale or delivery of gas in violation of the provisions of this Tariff or violation of any applicable laws, orders or ordinances, provided that disconnection may be made without notice if the violation creates an unsafe condition;
- g) For Customers acquiring their own supplies of gas, the Company may discontinue service upon request of a Supplier, provided however, that the Supplier represents to the Company that notice has been given to the Customer by the Supplier of delinquency in payment at least 5 working days prior to Supplier's request for disconnection, and provided that Supplier agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company from any potential resulting liability;

# **DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE (Continued)**

# 18.3 SPECIAL CONDITIONS (continued)

- h) If a Customer fails to uphold the terms of an individual installment agreement or contract; or
- i) Within 5 working days after written or electronic notice, for Consumers enrolled in e-bill, that any payment including paper check, electronic transfer payment, and debit or credit card payment, that has been rejected or returned to the Company by the bank.

#### 18.4 RIGHT OF ENTRY

The Company shall have the right to enter the Consumer's premises at any reasonable time to shut off service in accordance with this Tariff and to remove its meter and any other Company property. If the Company is required to take legal action to enforce its rights hereunder, the Company shall be entitled to recover all of its necessary expenses and fees including, but not limited to attorneys' fees, police escort fees and/or the cost to relocate the meter at the Customer's expense.

#### 18.5 ABANDONMENT OF SERVICE

Unless requested by the Customer, service shall not be abandoned (permanent disconnection of any Customer other than a temporary Customer) without permission of the Regulatory Authority. Failure of the Customer to request reinstitution of service within a reasonable period of time after disconnection shall be considered a request for permanent discontinuance of service.

#### RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF SERVICE

# 19.1 FOR NON-PAYMENT

When service has been disconnected for non-payment, the Company shall require that the Customer pay the total amount of his account then due plus the prescribed reconnect fee or make satisfactory arrangements for that payment before service is reinstituted. In addition, the Company shall require that the Customer reestablish satisfactory credit in accordance with Section 5 of this Tariff.

#### 19.2 FOR OTHER REASONS

If disconnection has been made by the Company for reasons other than non-payment, service shall not be reinstated until the condition for which it was terminated has been corrected to the Company's satisfaction. The Customer shall also be required to pay a reconnect fee before service is turned on. When service has been disconnected at the Customer's request for a period of one year or more, the request for service shall be treated as a new application. When service has been disconnected for less than one year, the request shall be treated in the same manner as a disconnection for non-payment.

#### 19.3 RECONNECTION

The Company shall restore service as soon as feasible after receipt of a reconnection request and compliance with the requirements of this Section. The Company shall charge a non-refundable reconnection fee for all Customers in accordance with Section 22.1. The restoration of service will be accomplished as expeditiously as scheduling permits. If the Customer requests service after hours or earlier than reconnection would otherwise be scheduled, the Company shall offer expedited service in accordance with Section 22.1. Customer shall be advised that an additional fee will be charged and must agree to pay such charge. In the event the Company is required to make more than one call because the reason for disconnection has not been properly corrected, the reconnect fee may be charged for each call made. No fee shall be charged for any reconnection made after disconnection due to Company's operation. See Section 22.1 for fees.

# **NOTICE**

# 20.1 GENERAL

Notice is required for all matters in this Tariff other than billing and payment of bills, which shall be deemed to have been given by the Customer when a letter with postage prepaid has been deposited in the United States Mail addressed to the Company at the office specified on the front sheet of this Tariff, and to the Customer when addressed to Customer at his or her last known service address, or to either party when directly communicated to the other party in person or by telephone.

#### AVERAGE BILL CALCULATION PLAN

#### 21.1 DESCRIPTION-RESIDENTIAL

Any residential Customer may elect to participate in the Company's Average Bill Calculation Plan ("ABC Plan"), or as such ABC Plan may be modified from time to time for payment of charges for gas service. In the event the Company modifies the ABC Plan, the Company shall notify individual Customers of those changes when the Customer requests enrollment. In general, the conditions under which a Customer may participate in the ABC Plan are set forth below:

- a) The Company reserves the right to adjust the monthly ABC Plan payments of any Customer at any time for changes in conditions or rates;
- b) The Company shall advise each Customer participating in the ABC Plan of the monthly ABC Plan payment to be paid by the Customer. Each participating Customer will receive a regular monthly gas bill that reflects actual consumption and the charges for that billing month and the amount of any debit or credit balance before the payment of that month's ABC Plan payment. The Customer shall continue to pay the monthly ABC Plan payment amount each month for gas service, notwithstanding the current gas service charge shown on the bill;
- c) In addition to the monthly ABC Plan payment any other charges incurred by the Customer shall be paid monthly when due;
- d) Interest shall neither be charged to the Customer on accrued on ABC Plan debit balances nor paid by the Company on accrued ABC Plan credit balances;
- e) Any amount due to the Customer or the Company will be settled and paid at the time a Customer, for any reason, ceases to be a participant in the ABC Plan;
- f) Any Customer's participation in the ABC Plan may be discontinued by the Company if the monthly plan payment has not been paid on or before the due date of the monthly payment;
- g) If any Customer in the ABC Plan shall cease, for any reason, to participate in the ABC Plan, then the Company may deny that Customer's reentry into the ABC Plan until the following August.

#### FEES AND DEPOSITS

### 22.1 FEES

# a) <u>Initiation of Service</u>

i) Connect (Section 5.4)

\$25.00

A connection fee shall be charged to any Applicant for the cost involved in initiation of service. This fee shall be charged when a meter is set and/or gas turned on.

ii) Read-In (Section 5.4)

\$10.00

A read-in fee shall be charged to any Applicant for the cost involved in initiation of service. This fee shall be charged when only a meter reading is required.

iii) Special Handling & Expedited Service (Section 5.4 and 19.3)

In addition to initiation of service fee above, a fee may be charged to any Applicant whose request to initiate service cannot be worked during normal business hours or requires special handling. Applicant must be advised that an additional fee will be charged and must agree to pay such charge. These charges include:

1) Special Handling

\$6.00

The Company may, at Applicant or Customer's request, provide special handling in order to meet the Applicant or Customer's requirements. Special handling <u>does</u> <u>not</u> include calling the Applicant/Customer in advance or A.M. or P.M. scheduling

2) Expedited Service and Overtime Rate

\$67.50

The Applicant or Customer's request for expedited service may be scheduled at any time to fit the Company's work schedule, and an Expedited Service charge shall be collected. The Company shall not be obligated to provide Expedited Service when the personnel and resources to do so are not reasonably available.

# FEES AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

# 22.1 FEES (Continued)

#### b) Services - Others

As stated below

Whenever service is furnished from the facilities of others and the Company must pay any special fees to the supplying Company, the Applicant may be requested to reimburse the Company for such charge.

# c) <u>Customer Requested Meter Test</u> (Section 12.4)

	Positive Displacement	<u>Charge</u>	
	Up to 1500 cubic feet per hour Over 1500 cubic feet per hour	\$80.00 \$100.00	
	Orifice Meters		
	All sizes	\$100.00	
d)	Payment Re-processing Fee (Section 13.5)	\$25.00	
e)	Collection Fee (Section 18.2)	\$10.00	

A Collection Fee shall be charged to any Customer whose failure to respond to a termination notice results in the dispatch of a Company representative to attempt collection of payment from Customer.

#### f) Reconnect Fees (Section 19.3)

\$25.00

A reconnect fee shall be charged to any Customer whose service is terminated and then reinitiated unless terminated in error by the Company. This fee is the same as the Standard Initiation Fee charged for new service.

(i) Regular Labor and After Hours Rates (see Section 22.1 a) (iii) \$45.00 (Regular) \$67.50 (After Hours) Charge for non-routine services including but not limited to repeat high bill investigations and building meter loops.

# FEES AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

#### 22.1 FEES (Continued)

Special Read (Section 12.1) g)

\$10.00

A special read fee shall be charged for customer requested reading of a meter of which estimated billing has been made. This is not in connection with Section 12.4.

h) Meter Exchange (Customer Request) (Section 17.6) \$100.00 without ERT

\$150.00 with ERT

A fee will be charged for customers requested meter exchanges when a meter working properly or done for the Customers convenience.

i) <u>Meter Tampering – Residential</u> (Section 17.2) \$100.00

A fee will be charged to Customers who knowingly tamper with Company property (i.e. broken meter locks, broken stop cocks, tampered meter dials, and broken meter blind seals).

**j**) Unauthorized Consumption (Section 17.2) \$20 plus expenses

Charges for the replacement of an illegally broken meter seal or locking device to the Customer who could be reasonably expected to benefit from gas service received through said meter.

k) No Access Fee (Section 16.4) \$10.00

A fee charged to a Customer who schedules an appointment but fails to appear.

1) Meter Removal Fee (Section 12.2) \$50.00

Account Research Fee m)

\$25.00/hr

A fee will be charged for Customer account information requiring research of accounting/billing information.

Police Escort Fee (Section 12.2) n)

Regular Time \$52.00/hr

Overtime \$132.60/hr Holiday \$158.60/hr

A fee charged when the Company is required to use law enforcement personnel to escort it into locked sites or sites requiring animal control in order for the Company to access a meter. Company will charge the stated amounts or current rate charged by the entity providing the police escort for this service

# FEES AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

# <u>22.2</u> <u>DEPOSITS</u>

a) Advances (Section 8.4)

As stated below

Estimated expenditure to provide service to the premises of new business beyond the existing distribution facilities of the Company.

b) <u>Customer Deposits</u>: (Section 10.1)

As stated below

Minimum deposit residential: \$75.00 Minimum non residential deposit: \$250.00